WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD
AGENDA
19th November 2013: 09:00 – 12:00
Professional Excellence Centre, Acre Lane
(I) = Information

(D) = Decision

1.

09:00 Apologies and Introductions

Chair

(I)

2.

09:05 Declarations of interest

Chair

(I)

3.

09:05 Minutes of the last meeting

Chair

(I)

4.

09:10 Secondary Attainment for Academic Year 2012-13

S Talbot

(I)

5.

09:25 Commissioning

V Stafford

(I)

6.

09:40 Our Children Deserve Better – Prevention Pays

J Webster

(I)

7.

09:55 Safeguarding Q2 Report

K Jones

(I)

8.

10:10 Child Poverty Update

B Morgan

(I)

10:20 Break
9.

10:40 Youth Voice

L Davidson

(I)

10.

11:00 Youth offending Inspection

S Pimblett

(I)

11.

11:15 Targeted Services Progress

D Gornik

(I)

12.

11:35 Report of Children’s Trust Structure

N Clarkson

(DI)

13.

11:50 CYPP Quarter 2 Performance Report

T Little

(I)

Date and time of 2013/14 meetings:
21 January 2014
18 March 2014
20 May 2014
15 July 2014

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda
Item
3
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S
TRUST
BOARD

1151

MINUTES
Minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday, 24 September 2013

Present: Councillor T Smith (Chair) J Hassall, J Graham, P Sheridan, S Dainty, K Podmore,
Councillor W Clements, J Owens, V McGee, G Price, L Loughran, M Kilkoyne, B Morgan, R
Longster, Councillor C Meaden, K Coxhead.
In Attendance: N Clarkson, S Talbot, R Curtis

1.0 APOLOGIES
J Martin, B Walker, J Webster, J Welsh
2.0 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
None.
3.0 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING
Due to staff illness section 11.0 of the minutes had information missing, this would be
amended and the minutes would be completed as soon as possible.
4.0 ATTAINMENT FOR ACADEMIC YEAR 2012-13
S Talbot introduced a presentation on standards in Early Years and Key Stages 1 and 2.
OFSTED Inspection highlights gave an overall positive picture with 86% primary, 68%
secondary schools (including academies) and 92% of special schools are judged good or
better.
Early Years and Foundation Stage results were outlined including analysis by district. Areas
for continuing development are pupils on free school meals (FSM) and looked after children
(LAC). The level of development of children is also a focus. A priority is for children to get
expected or accelerated levels of progress. Data is analysed at pupil and school level and
support provided to schools and foundation teachers.
At Key Stage 1 there is an increase in attainment and narrowing of gender and FSM gaps.
There is a focus on children eligible for FSM not achieving level 2+ to improve this outcome
in the future. District results were outlined, all results are analysed at school level.
Future development includes targeted work at schools with FSM gap, focus on 2b+ and
looked after children.

Page 1
Page 1

At Key Stage 2 there has been a steady increase over the last four years. The FSM gap has
increased in reading but narrowed in writing and maths. The % of pupils making the
expected 2 levels of progress in writing and maths has increased.
The areas for development include the FSM gap particularly in reading and LAC attainment
and a focus on achieving two levels of progress. Training and bespoke schools support is in
place. A tracking system is in place for LAC and challenge is being provided.
R Curtis asked about pre-school LAC. Sue noted that some health visitors had identified
speech and language issues and that help in children’s centre has been made available.
S Talbot now oversees Targeted Services school improvement and has supported the
development of target services. The new structure will ensure greater links into transition
between school phases.
S Dainty noted that the new approach will give an exciting shift in working between primary
and secondary schools and schools were enthusiastic about the changes.
Councillor Clements asked about 2 year old funding and FSM wok.
Sue replied that we had 683 2 year olds at the moment in a pilot and further funding would
develop this work further.
J Owens asked about the use of pupil premium and how it was monitoring schools.
Sue replied that the LA had a two pronged approach. Review of published information and
analysing what the money is spent on and evidence of the impact of this. Appropriate
challenge can then be put in place. J Owens noted that governors would like advice so that
they can ensure this area can stay high on the agenda.
R Longster noted the additional funding schools received for LAC. Sue replied progress
officers are monitoring this linked to the school improvement team.
Councillor Smith noted that £14m pupil premium was in place in Wirral and was positive
regarding the LA approach early good challenge and support.
Councillor Smith thanked S Talbot and the team for their work.
Resolved: The presentation was noted.
5.0 PUBLIC HEALTH COMMISSIONING FOR CHILDREN 2013-14
R Curtis presented the paper which outlines Health Visiting (HV) Service and Family Nurse
Partnership (FNP) programmes.
Locally there has been a period of investment in HV and FNP. The service now reaches
90% of children. The next stage is to develop how the data can be collected from this work.
This would allow this data to influence the planning for early years services.
In 2009 HV could not be recruited. The new policy is to increase the number of qualified HV.
The impact of this is that to stay within the budget the numbers of other unqualified staff will
be reduced.
J Hassall requested greater clarity on the proposals as the current service is working well
and is positive cost effective model.

Page 2

2

R Curtis noted the recent funding allocation had a £2m disparity with current situation. A
piece of work is being carried out across the north of England to review spending and costs
in each area. A balanced budget must be achieved.
J Hassall noted the impact on safeguarding with the change.
R Curtis noted an impact assessment will be developed for each option.
K Podmore asked if less money was coming into Wirral.
R Curtis said yes there was less money; Wirral had previously invested heavily so the new
funding is significantly less than this.
V McGee asked how lobbying was carried out and if the CCG had the responsibility to
influence this.
R Curtis noted there was a lot of lobbying underway but the central message is the funding
will not increase.
R Curtis noted that the disruption to the system that would occur should not be under
estimated. This is a very complex situation.
Councillor Smith suggested that the board should write to all MPS regarding this. The Board
agreed.
V McGee suggested this should be monitored going forward on a quarterly monitor of actions
and the impact of the change.
Resolved: R Curtis would draft a letter from the Board to be agreed by the Chair.

6.0 DEVELOPMENT OF AN EARLY YEARS STRATEGY
R Curtis outlined the draft multi-agency strategy “Starting well in Wirral: A Joint
Commissioning Strategy for children’s public health services 0-5 years 2013-2015”. The aim
is to finalise this by end of October for approval by the Children’s Trust Board (CTB) and the
Health and Wellbeing Board (HWBB).
J Graham asked the board to feed into the strategy and provide advice on governance of the
strategy. There was a general discussion regarding the structure of the Children’s Trust (CT)
strategy groups overseen by the CT Executive. The current arrangements would be reviewed
by the Being Healthy Lead J Graham to ensure an appropriate group to oversee governance
was defined.
J Hassall asked if the right people were currently on the working group.
R Curtis suggested further representations could be sought by J Graham and herself.
Resolved:
The Board noted the report.
J Graham would ensure governance of the strategy would be defined through the CT
Executive.

Page 3
3

7.0 REVIEW OF
MEMBERSHIP

THE

MEMORANDUM

OF

UNDERSTANDING

AND

BOARD

N Clarkson introduced the annual review of the memorandum and membership. The
memorandum had been reviewed in light of organisational structural changes and the WCT
and WSCB protocol had been reviewed with the WSCB manager. The membership has
been reviewed as suitable in the current format.
There was a general discussion regarding the Children’s Trust sub-groups and the board
requested clarity on their operation.
J Hassall noted that new staff are joining the local authority who would join the groups and
that the CT Executive would be reviewing and refining the sub groups at their next meeting.
Resolved:
The Board agreed the new memorandum and requested no changes to the
membership.
J Hassall as Chair of the CT Executive would report back on this item at the next
meeting.

8.0 WIRRAL COUNCIL BUDGET OPTIONS
J Hassall introduced the Families and Wellbeing council budget options. They are officer
budget options. As a council in 2014/15 a £27.5m saving is required.
Some options span a number of years - these are in addition to the restructure and removal
of manager roles. A further project in this area will also be carried out by the council. The
council is also undertaking a shared service project with Cheshire West and Chester Council.
In 2012 previous budget options had been agreed some of which will be implemented in
future years. The consultation at the time impacted on the options taken by the Council
J Hassall outlined the key options in this consultation impacting on children including:
Accommodation for 16-17 year olds including care leavers
There was a discussion regarding 16-17 homelessness and the monitoring of those in need.
The numbers have been approximately 90 children with different levels of need. Work is
ongoing with providers to ensure the right type of accommodation is required. The proposal
is to improve the provision.
Working in partnership with schools
Including areas of school crossing patrols, school improvement, education social welfare
service and school staff early retirement. Councillor Smith noted the 20% government
reduction in funding for school improvement services which penalised areas like Wirral which
deliver an excellent service.
Early Intervention to Support Families
There was a general discussion that early identification across all partners was crucial to
intervening early and working to prevent escalation. This approach could save money.
Careers Advice and Guidance
K Podmore noted the recent Ofsted report which criticising CEAG services in schools and the
importance of ensuring young people received good guidance.

Page 4
4

Children’s Centres
B Morgan noted that this was a concern ensuring that the right families would access
services effectively.
Councillor Clements wanted evidence from other areas that had closed their centres and the
impact on early intervention effectiveness.
J Hassall noted that D Gornik who was joining CYPD as the lead for Targeted Services had
some experience of this in her previous role.
Family Parenting and Youth Commissioning
Reducing Funding for Substance Misuse and Teenage Pregnancy
R Longster noted all the options were extreme and could potentially lead to contradictions
particularly around early intervention.
J Hassall asked the board to contribute to the consultation.
J Graham noted that Public Health were producing a paper on the consequences of the
options which could be provided to the board.
Resolved: The Board agreed to respond to the consultation as appropriate.

9.0 ANY OTHER BUSINESS
V McGee noted the tragic murder of Daniel Pelka and the learning from the incident and
wanted to understand how that would be used on Wirral.
J Hassall replied that the information goes to the WSCB for review. The information would be
shared with this board and she would expect that it would be included in the next WSCB
quarterly report to the board.
J Hassall informed the board that planning was underway for a joint CT and WSCB event on
the 6th of December. Professor Jan Haworth will introduce implications of Working Together
2013 and the new Ofsted Framework for inspection of services for Children in Need (CIN),
LAC and care leavers.
Kevin Jones interim Senior Safeguarding Manager is joining Council as the safeguarding
lead in children’s services.

DATE AND TIME OF 2013/14 MEETINGS
19 November 2013
21 January 2014
18 March 2014
20 May 2014
15 July 2014

Page 5
5

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6

Agenda Item 5
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – November 2013
Children’s Services Commissioning

1.0 Background
This report has in the past covered the commissioning of services under the Early
Intervention Grant. It was agreed that for this round of commissioning it would be more
effective and efficient to include other commissioning areas such as some of the services
which are a statutory duty of the local authority e.g. missing from home and care,
advocacy and Independent visitors. This meant that they were all subject to the same
process to ensure consistency and reduced bureaucracy as the potential bidders only
needed to fill in their business details once.
2.0 Introduction
This information is an update to inform the Board about the performance of the Children’s
Commissioning which were commissioned and began operating from May 1st 2013. The
contracts were awarded for one year until 30th April 2014. After contracts were awarded,
performance measures to underpin service delivery were agreed with each of the service
providers. The Priority areas for which services were commissioned were:
PA1 – Parenting
PA2 – Short Breaks for Disabled Children
PA3 – Youth Challenge
PA4 – Statutory Services
PA5 - IFIP
Delivery against the performance measures have been RAG rated Red, Amber or Green.
A Red rating denotes underperformance; Amber reflects work in progress broadly in line
with expectations and Green is meeting or exceeding expectations. Red and Amber
ratings are followed up by commissioners in one to one discussions at which corrective
actions are identified to improve performance.
Each organisation is contracted to supply a completed monitoring form every quarter as
well as having a monitoring visit. 75% of the organisations have had a contract
compliance visit with the other 25% planned. So far there are no organisations which
present as a concern.

Page 7

3.0 Current Position
The current position for each of the areas is as follows
PA1 Parenting
There are four organisations currently commissioned in this area. Three of the four services are
meeting both their outputs and outcomes. The other service is not performing but it has to be
highlighted that this is not of their own making. One of the reasons for this is that it is a new type of
service, it has been targeted differently and a new referral pathway has been created. The
organisation continues to work closely with Senior and District Managers to rectify this situation
and an alternative plan has been put in place and this will continue to be closely monitored.
PA2 Short Breaks
There are twelve different organisations commissioned in this area and eight of them are meeting
their outputs and outcomes. One organisation who provides three different services have not as
yet provided their information as they are under new management and have indicated that this will
be forthcoming. The other organisation that is not performing according to their outputs and
outcomes is due to the summer period and staff changes. Both these areas will be closely
monitored and rectified in the next quarter report.
PA3 Youth Challenge
In this area of Youth Challenge there were three services commissioned and two of the
organisations are meeting their outputs and outcomes. The one service which is not meeting its
targets has put in strategies to rectify this in the next quarter and will continue to be closely
monitored.
PA4 Statutory Services
There are four different organisations delivering these commissioned services and only one which
is not currently meeting their outputs and outcomes. An alternative plan has been put in place to
ensure that their performance meets its targets in the next quarter.
PA5 IFIP
In this area there are two services which have been commissioned and although one of the
services have not yet met their targets, this will be rectified over the next two quarters as referrals
to this service come from IFIP once a family is beginning to exit the programme and requires a
lower level of help.
4.0 Additional Commissioning
There have been three new areas of commissioning which are Foster Carer reviews, Day Nursery
Provision and Adoption Reform and they will be reported on in the next report.
5.0 Recommendations:
That Wirral Children’s Trust Board note the report.
Appendices:
Appendix 1 – RAG Report for Quarter 1 and 2
Report Author:
Name Janice Monty
Title Commissioning and Contracts Manager

Page 8

Contact:
Phone: 666 4496
Email: janicemonty@wirral.gov.uk

Chidlren's Services Commissioning Rag Report Quarter Two July Sept 2013
Service/Provider

Predicted Outputs

Actual Outputs
QTR 1

R/A/G
QTR 1

Actual Outputs
QTR 2

R/A/G
QTR 2

Comments

Priority area 1 Parenting and
family support
100

0

9

This organisation has not achieved its outputs as yet because it relies on referrals from Social Workers. They have
been working closely with the District Managers and the Senior Manager to rectify this situation. An alternative plan has
been put in place to rectify this. The review of the current cohort is not yet available and will be provided next quarter.

80

16

28

95% of participants rated this service as successful. This organisation also has met its otucomes for this quarter and is
on track to meet its outputs

BME - WMO

180

41

65

This service has met its outcomes for the past two quarters and has also exceeded their target of 90% of people
satisfied with their service and is on track to meet its outputs

Young Carers - Barnardos

140

42

55

100% of participants were satisfied with this service. 100% was also achieved in their 5 outcomes. This organistion is
meeting its outputs

Out of care - Homestart

Domestic Violence - Zero Centre

Page 9

Priority Area 2 - Short
Breaks
Service/Provider

Predicted Outputs per
year

PA2.1a Activate Training

48 sessions
10 yp per session
96 sessions
15 yp per session

6 sessions
11 per session
14 sessions
10 per session

9 sessions
11 per session
20 sessions
10 per session

Lower outputs for weekend sessions as not running throughout the summer. This will be picked up in the autumn.

156 sessions,
numbers attending vary
84 sessions
15 yp per session
4x4hr sessions per wk
for 48wks per year. 48
unique yp per week

27 sessions

35 sessions

No issues

21 sessions
11 per session
36 sessions
44 unique yp per
week

18 sessions
9 per session

No sessions run in the holiday weeks, attendance picking up again after summer holidays

235 sessions

37 sessions

56 sessions

PA2.1b.Wirral Youth and Play

PA2.2 Wiral Toy Library
PA2.3 Wirral Sport Development
PA2.4 Crossroads- Pensby Wood

PA2.5 Wirral Play Council

PA2.6 Crossroads after school clubs 78 sessions,
yp per session

7 14 sessions
8 yp attending

Lower attendance in summer. WY&P are looking at making changes to when run sessions in holidays.

Awaiting information - this organisation is now under new management. Information has been requested.

No issues
Awaiting information - this organisation is now under new management. Information has been requested.

PA2.7 Wirral Autistic Society Activity 3x2hr sessions per week 24 sessions
for 48 weeks
Clubs

38 sessions

No issues

8 weekends per year; 6 2 weekends each
for level 2/3 yp with app with 10 yp attending
12 yp per weekend, 2 for
level 4 yp with app 6 yp
per weekend. Min 43
hrs
per
weekend
1800
session
146 sessions
140 sessions
28
50 unique yp per year
23 yp year to date yp year to date

Awaiting information - this organisation is now under new management. Information has been requested.

PA2.11 Wirral Autistic Society
Friendship Support

2x2hr sessions per wk
96 sessions per year
60 unique yp per year

19 sessions
10 yp year to date

17 sessions
14 yp year to date

Due to the nature of this group there has been some fluctuations regarding weekly attendance and provision. This has
been in response to the needs of the young people attending and WAS have used the hours contracted to enable
longer activities to take place.

PA2.12 Action for Children Contract
Carer scheme

242 nights per year:
218 nights contract care,
6 yp per year
24 nights SB care

22 nights total, 16
contract care, 6 SB
care. 4 yp contract
care, 1 yp SB

56 nights total, 49
contract care, 7 SB
care. 7 yp contract
care, 1 yp SB Year
to date

No issues

PA2.8 Crossroads residential
weekends

PA2.9 Wirral Autistic Society Take 2
Short Breaks

Attendance and uptake of this service has been significantly affected by the changes in staff and the size of the team
being relatively small. There have also been some implications to uptake as regular families have been on holiday

Page 10

Priority Area 3 - Youth
Challenge
Universal Support - Youth Service

9 courses - 100 young
people in each course

Targeted Support - Youth Fed

18 courses - 10 young
people in each course

A total of 447 yp have participated from May to October and 220 represents new young people this quarter Target level
of 80% from target localities and the number of young people from these ares is 135. 24 young people gained an
accredited outcome but 220 are registered to complete at a later stage.
100

227

3 courses -34 young
0 people
Targeted Support - YOS

5 courses - 10 young
people in each course
57

This organisation has not met its outputs but work is currently underway to ensure that this is rectified in the next quarter.
100% of the young people who took part rated the service as being successful. 100% was recorded for two of the
outcomes which related to an improvement in school attendance and improved behaviour.

17

100% of young people who took part rated the service as being succussful. Refferal agencies reported that they were
pleased with the success and progress made by the young people. Also 100% of the young people taking part showed
an increase in their school attendance. No anti social behaviour was reported for this cohort. This service is meeting its
outputs.

16

This organisation is not fully achieving their outputs. The reason for this is that this service is dependant on referrals
being made from Social Workers. Discussion has taken place with the relevant people and an alternative plan has
been put into place to achieve the outputs. Of the young people supported the outcomes achieved were all over 80%.

Priority Area 4 - statutory
services
Advocacy and IV - Barnardos

400

47

This organisation is on target to achieve its outputs. They also achieved 100% in their four outcomes

Parent Pship - WIRED

45

97
Three of the four outputs this organisation achieved 100% as well as achieving 85% in three of their outcomes

Missing from home - Catch 22

55

112
This organisation is on target to achieve its outputs. They also achieved 100% in their four outcomes

Post Adoption - After Adoption

11

9

Priority 5 - IFIP

This intervention relies on families being referred from IFIP when the intervention is nearing completion and the
expectation is that the outputs will be met in the final two quarters. 92% of the families referred have been supported to
participate.

Family Role Model - Homestart

Page 11

180

0

12
This organisation over-achieved in all of their outputs and eight outcomes.

FIP- Catch 22

75

73

83

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12

Agenda Item 6
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – November 2013
Chief Medical Officer’s Annual report 2012: Our Children Deserve Better:Prevention Pays
– a summary and report on recommendations

1.0 Background
The Chief Medical Officer’s annual report must fulfil two functions: to provide an
assessment of the state of the public’s health and to advise government on where action is
required.
The Chief Medical Officer’s report for 2012 sets out her response as Chief Medical Officer
to the challenges to the health and wellbeing of our children and young people. To
produce this report she has drawn on the expertise of a broad range of experts,
academics, clinicians and service providers who have set out the evidence about the
challenges faced by policy makers, researchers and front-line professionals such as
teachers and clinicians. She has also listened to and drawn on evidence from children and
young people themselves as well as those who care for them.
2.0 Why was the topic chosen?
The choice of focusing on the health and wellbeing of children and young people was for a
number of reasons:
•

The evidence base for the life course approach is strong. What happens early
in life affects health and wellbeing in later life. There is increasing evidence that, in
England, we are not doing as well as we should to achieve good health and
wellbeing outcomes for our children and young people – when we compare both
historically and within and between countries for mortality, morbidity, wellbeing,
social determinants and key indicators of health service provision.

•

The variation we see within our country shows us what ‘good’ looks like and
what is possible: we know we can do better.

•

While our economic future may be challenging, there is a growing business case for
improving the lives of children and young people. Improving health has the potential
to benefit our nation economically.

3.0 The intended audience for this report
The first chapter is the Chief Medical Officer’s response to the evidence base underpinning
the challenges facing children and young people today, and is therefore aimed at
policy makers and politicians. This report shines a light on those issues that require
specific focus by politicians and makes recommendations aimed at policy makers, health
and social care commissioners, police and crime commissioners, and providers of health,
social care, education, housing and beyond.
In addition to making recommendations for action by specific bodies, she has also
published for the first time, short summaries for key organisations and individuals to
enable them to quickly identify what they can do to improve the health and
wellbeing of the children and young people they support, educate and care for.
The remainder of this report consists of chapters written by internationally recognised
experts who were asked to provide an assessment of the key issues facing the health and
wellbeing of children and young people in England today. These chapters were written to

Page 13

inform the Chief Medical Officer, of the areas she needs to champion for action. The
chapters provide the evidence base on which her calls for action are made. Accompanying
this report is the Atlas of Variation in Healthcare for Children and Young People 2013,
published as an annex to this report, which has been updated and expanded and provides
data that have helped shape the report.
The Chief Medical Officer has chosen to look at the evidence using a life course approach.
Additionally, she examined four other groups of children and young people, the business
case for investing in the health of children and young people, and the views of young
people and their families. She chose these four groups because they exemplify the
challenges that we face. By looking at two disease areas, mental health and
neurodevelopmental disabilities, key themes emerge around the importance of data,
service provision and prevention. Focusing on looked-after children and youth justice
reveals themes around the importance of early life determinants such as parenting
and the inequalities that exist in child health.
The full report can be accessed at https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/chiefmedical-officers-annual-report-2012-our-children-deserve-better-prevention-pays.
Appendix 1 to this report reproduces the report’s recommendations.

6.0 Recommendations:
That Wirral Children’s Trust Board note the report and ensures that the findings of the
Chief Medical Officer’s report are reflected in local plans and actions .

Appendices:
Appendix 1

Report Author:
Julie Webster
Head of Public Health

Contact:
Phone: 0151 666 5142
Email: juliewebster@wirral.gov.uk

Page 14

Annex 1

Recommendations

Page 15
Annual Report of the Chief Medical Officer 2012, Our Children Deserve Better: Prevention Pays

Annex 1 page 1

Recommendations

Recommendations
Where
CQC

Care Quality Commission

CYP

Children and young people

CYPOF Children and Young People’s Health Outcomes Forum
DCLG

Department for Communities and local Government

DH

Department of Health

DsPH

Directors of Public Health

GP

General Practitioners

HEE

Health Education England

HWBB Health and Wellbeing Boards
NI CMO Chief Medical Officer (Northern Ireland)
NICE

National Institute for Health and Care Excellence

NIHR

National Institute for Health Research

Ofsted Office for Standards in Education, Children’s Services and Skills
ONS

Office for National Statistics

PHSE

Personal Social Health and Economic Education

PHE

Public Health England

RCGP

Royal College of General Practitioners

RoSPA Royal Society for the Prevention of Accidents
Recommendation

Type

Organisation

1

Join

PHE

Cabinet Office supported by Public Health England, and the Children’s
Commissioner, should consider initiating an annual National Children’s Week.

Cabinet Office
Children’s
Commissioner

2

Public Health England in collaboration with the Early Intervention Foundation
should assess the progress on early intervention and prevention, continue to
develop and disseminate the evidence base for why this matters and build advice
on how health agencies can be part of local efforts to move from a reactive to a
proactive approach.

Build

Public Health England, working with Directors of Public Health and Health and
Wellbeing Boards, should support the work of the Big Lottery Fund programmes
and ensure that the lessons learnt are disseminated.

Build

4

Public Health England should undertake a Healthy Child Programme evidence
refresh, starting with the early years.

Build

PHE

5

Public Health England should work with local authorities, schools and relevant
agencies to build on current efforts to increase participation in physical activity
and promote evidence based innovative solutions that lead to improved access to
existing sports facilities.

Build

PHE

Nutrition

Build

3

6

 CMO recommends that NICE examines the cost-effectiveness of moving the
Healthy Start vitamin programme from a targeted to a universal offering,

PHE
Early Intervention
Foundation

DsPH
HWBB

Local Government

NICE
DH

 Department of Health to set out next steps in the light of evidence from the
Scientific Advisory Committee on Nutrition (SACN) about folic acid
 Action is taken if required on iodine following recommendations by SACN

Page 16
Annual Report of the Chief Medical Officer 2012, Our Children Deserve Better: Prevention Pays

Annex 1 page 2

Recommendations

Recommendation

Type

Organisation

7

The Social Mobility and Child Poverty Commission and Public Health England
should work together to ensure that efforts to narrow attainment gaps in
education complement efforts being made to narrow health inequalities.

Build

PHE

Public Health England should work with NHS England, the Department for
Communities and Local Government and the Department of Health to identify
how the health needs of families are met through the Troubled Families
Programme.

Join

Department of Health, NHS England and Public Health England, alongside
representatives of children and young people, should build on the You’re Welcome
programme and the vision outlined in the recent pledge for better health
outcomes for children and young people to create a ‘health deal’ which outlines
the compact between children and young people and health providers, and creates
a mechanism for assessing the implementation of this.

Voice
of
CYP

10

Children with long-term conditions, as vulnerable people, should have a named GP
who co-ordinates their disease management.

Build

RCGP

11

As plans are made to extend GP training, paediatrics and child health should be
part of the core component of extended training.

Build

DH

8

9

Commission for Social
Mobility
PHE
NHS England
DCLG
DH
NHS England
PHE

HEE
RCGP

12

Health Education England should commission education to ensure that the
workforce is trained to deliver care that is appropriate for children and young
people, in the same manner as is being currently carried out for age-appropriate
care for older people.

Build

HEE

13

Health Education England, the Department of Health and Public Health England
should work to ensure that commissioned education of health professionals
stresses the important role of school nurses.

Join

HEE
DH
PHE

14

PHE should develop and enact a youth social marketing programme, “Rise
Above” to engage young people around exploratory behaviours through multiple
platforms.

Build

PHE

15

Public Health England and other leading organisations working in the field should
work together to strengthen the evidence base for programmes that develop
resilience in young people.

Build

PHE

16

Public Health England should develop an adolescent health and wellbeing
framework which includes the inter-relationships of exploratory behaviours. As
part of their public-facing work, Public Health England should model engagement
with young people on multiple health and wellbeing issues through a variety of
platforms.

Build

PHE

17

Public Health England, the PSHE Association and other leading organisations in
the field should review the evidence linking health and wellbeing with educational
attainment, and from that promote models of good practice for educational
establishments to use.

Join

PHE

The Children and Young People’s Health Outcomes Forum annual summit should
provide an opportunity for the review of health outcomes that are relevant to
children, and to examine regional variation.

Join

18

PSHE Association

CYPOF

Page 17
Annual Report of the Chief Medical Officer 2012, Our Children Deserve Better: Prevention Pays

Annex 1 page 3

Recommendations

Recommendation

Type

Organisation

19

Regulators, including the Care Quality Commission and Ofsted, should annually
review the effectiveness of inspection frameworks and the extent to which they
evaluate the contribution of all partners to services for children and young people.
This includes the contribution of statutory partners, local safeguarding boards and
health and wellbeing boards to the health and protection needs of children and
young people.

Join

CQC

20

The review of ‘Safeguarding Children and Young people: roles and competences
for health care staff – intercollegiate document’ should embed the professional
responsibility to the whole family, and professional bodies should develop the
necessary innovative tools to support this.

Join

Professional
organisations

21

 Department of Health should work with Office for National Statistics,
Public Health England and relevant third sector organisations to investigate
opportunities to commission a regular survey to identify the current prevalence
of mental health problems among children and young people, with particular
reference to those with underlying neurodevelopmental issues, those aged
under 5, ethnic minorities and those in the youth justice system.

Join

Local Government

Ofsted

PHE
NHS England
ONS

 This data collection should include international comparisons and be linked to
the Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services data set, providing key data for
developing local services to meet clinical need.
 An annual audit of services and expenditure in the area should be undertaken.
22

The National Institute for Health Research should develop a research call to
provide the evidence base to improve health outcomes for long-term conditions in
childhood, to match the best worldwide.

Build

NIHR

23

The National Institute for Health Research (NIHR) Clinical Research Network,
including the NIHR Medicines for Children Network, should work with children and
young people to review the design of clinical studies in order to facilitate increased
participation of children and young people in drug and other trials.

Voice
of
CYP

NIHR

24

The four UK Chief Medical Officers have agreed that the Chief Medical Officer in
Northern Ireland, Dr Michael McBride, will lead a group with the four public health
agencies and The Royal Society for the Prevention of Accidents (RoSPA) to develop
strategies to combat blind cord deaths.

Join

NI CMO
RoSPA

Page 18
Annual Report of the Chief Medical Officer 2012, Our Children Deserve Better: Prevention Pays

Annex 1 page 4

Agenda Item 7
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – 19th November 2013
Report to the Children’s Trust Board on Safeguarding Arrangements

1.0 Background and Introduction
1.1 This report forms part of a regular safeguarding update from the WSCB to the
Children’s Trust Board on key developments locally and nationally on regulatory reform,
updates on progress of local Serious Case Reviews and work locally and key challenges
for the partnership and agencies.
2.0 National Reform and Statutory Guidance
2.1 Ofsted Inspection arrangements of services for children in need of help and
protection, children looked after and care leavers
Ofsted have published the inspection framework for the Inspection of Services for Children
in Need of Help and Protection, Children Looked After and Care Leavers. The framework
will look closely at the experiences of children and young people and focus on individual
journeys from identification of need to receiving timely and appropriate help. The new (3
yearly) inspection cycle begins in November and Wirral will probably be inspected early in
2014.
The inspection framework contains a number of significant differences to previous
frameworks including:
•
•

•
•
•

The previous judgement grade of adequate will be replaced by requires
improvement
Three key judgement areas – experiences and progress of children who need help
and protection
- experiences and progress of children looked after and achieving permanence
- leadership, management and governance
A grade of inadequate in any key judgement area will result in an overall grade of
inadequate
LSCB’s will be given a graded judgement of their effectiveness for the first time
Graded judgement will also be given for quality of adoption service and experience
of care leavers

3.0 Joint WSCB and Children’s Trust Board Development Day
The Development Day on 6th December for CTB and WSCB members will have a focus on
the implementation and implications for agencies of the Working Together to Safeguard
Children (2013) statutory guidance and on readiness and preparation for the Ofsted
Inspection and review of the effectiveness of the WSCB. The Development Day will be
facilitated by Professor Jan Horwath from Sheffield University who led the previous joint
day last year and has facilitated sessions for the WSCB over the past few years. A
questionnaire has been circulated to ascertain partner views on the effectiveness of the
WSCB.
4.0 Child Sexual Exploitation Strategy
The Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) multi-agency sub group of the WSCB has been
established and oversees implementation of the CSE action plan. Recent progress
includes:

Page 19

•
•

•
•

•

Launch of the Pan Merseyside and Cheshire CSE Protocol at an event in July
Agreement of a multi-agency information sharing protocol to support monthly
meetings managed by Merseyside police to discuss plans for children identified as
at risk of being sexually exploited
Completion of awareness raising training with police, response, health and youth
workers in schools, and foster carers and residential providers
Planning a community awareness raising project with trading standards which will
focus on ‘night time economy’ workers who may come into contact with vulnerable
children including taxi drivers, hoteliers, takeaway/ off licence staff, licensees etc.
The WSCB have successfully bid for £9,900 from the Public Health outcomes fund
to support this activity

•

Planned work for completion in the next 3-6 months:
•

•
•
•
•
•
•

Publication of an online e-learning certificated CSE awareness course designed to
be accessed by Wirral Council staff and staff across partner agencies regardless of
their role
Poster/media awareness raising campaign
Introduction of multi-agency training sessions supported by Catch-22 and
Barnardo’s
Commissioning a theatre company to perform Chelsea’s Choice, a play about the
effects of CSE to multi-agency professionals and schools.
Publication of a new CSE multi-agency procedure
Development of a catalogue of resources for schools and other agencies
Further development of disruption tactics and proposals for voluntary licensing
reporting of concerns scheme

5.0 Learning from the Daniel Pelka Serious Case Review
The SCR report for Daniel Pelka was published by Coventry LSCB in September 13.
Daniel died in March 2012 aged 4 from a head injury caused by his mother and stepfather
who were both subsequently convicted of Daniel’s murder and sentenced to 30 years
imprisonment. For a period of at least six months prior to this Daniel had been starved,
assaulted, neglected and abused.
Daniel’s family were from Poland and his mother had relationships with 3 different partners
whilst living in the UK. All of these relationships involved alcohol misuse and domestic
abuse. Daniel was seen as an isolated child at school and he presented as thin and
hungry and with unexplained bruises and these concerns were raised with his mother who
dismissed them as health problems. Daniel was seen by a community paediatrician and
his low weight was explained as probably being due to a health condition. The
paediatrician was unaware of the schools other concerns.
Findings from the SCR tell us that professionals should:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Always consider the possibility of child abuse as a potential cause of presenting
problems and injuries
See all injuries in the context of other injuries or bruises
Balance optimism with objective evidence
Not just rely on a parent’s explanation of events and views
Place ourselves in the child’s shoes to see what things look like for them
Make sure we hear the voice of the child
Look at patterns of behaviour and family lifestyle over time

Page 20

•

Work with male partners as much as possible

The learning from the SCR will be shared with agencies through a series of briefings and a
briefing note will be disseminated. The learning will also be incorporated into the WSCB
training courses.
6.0 Recommendations:
6.1 The Wirral Children’s Trust Board notes the report.
Report Authors:
Kevin Jones
Safeguarding Manager

Contact:
Phone 0151 6665576
Email kevinjones@wirral.gov.uk

David Robbins
WSCB Business Manager

Phone 0151 6664314
Email davidrobbins@wirral.gov.uk

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22

Agenda Item 8
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – 19th November 2013
CHILD POVERTY: SCHOOL COMMUNITY HUB PROJECT

1.0

Background

1.1

This report outlines the progress that has been made in respect of establishing a
primary school community hub, further to recommendations made to the Council’s
Cabinet in June 2013 by Wirral’s Child and Family Poverty Working Group.

1.2

The proposed approach to establishing the school community hub, as set out in the
report to Cabinet, is based on enhancing the vital role of schools and creating a
platform for them to act as a catalyst for transforming local communities.

1.3

The £100,000 funding available for this project was allocated by the Council for the
Child and Family Poverty Working Group to identify priorities and put in place
activities to address issues of child poverty.

2.

Introduction

2.1

In their recommendations to Cabinet, the Working Group suggested that the project
should take as its starting point an asset-based approach and suggested that
testing this approach in a localised way through a ‘school community hub’ would be
the most effective use of the resources available. It is intended that activities
delivered through the ‘school community hub’ will be informed by the needs
identified by families and the wider community, and that lessons learnt from the
approach should be rolled out borough-wide.

2.2

The rationale for using a primary school as a hub is that primary schools tend to
have a focused geography, are naturally accepted as community leaders, have a
resource of buildings, land and people and access to enrolled children, younger and
older siblings and most importantly to parents. There is also evidence that primary
school pupils are much more likely to be affected by an area’s economics and
employment deprivation than their counterparts in secondary schools.

2.3

The Working Group proposed that a school should be selected through a
transparent commissioning process and that this school should then:
§
§
§

Identify / recruit community organisers to work using the school as a base;
Work with the school community to develop an asset map for the local area, and
an action plan which sets out what the community can do for itself, what it needs
support to do, and what it wants partners to deliver;
Support the community organisers to deliver this action plan, with clear project
management arrangements.

3.

Commissioning Process / Progress

3.1

The commissioning process was developed with guidance from the Council’s
Procurement Team.

Page 23

1

3.2

To date the following actions have been taken:
§
§
§
§
§

4.

Recommendations:
§

5.

Primary schools where the majority of pupils on roll are affected by child poverty
and deprivation were invited to express an interest in delivering the community
hub project by September 2013;
An information session took place in September to provide headteachers with
the opportunity to ask any questions about the project;
4 schools expressed an interest within the deadline;
Visits to these schools took place on the 6th November, with formal interviews
being undertaken on the 19th November by a selection panel chaired by the
Director of Children’s Services;
A decision will then be made with the school community hub project underway
by January 2014.

That Wirral Children’s Trust Board note the progress made in respect of
establishing the School Community Hub project

Appendices:
The report to Cabinet in June which provides the background to the project can be
viewed at:
http://democracy.wirral.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=121&MId=4358&Ve
r=4
Report Authors:
Bev Morgan
Chair - Wirral Child and Family Poverty Working Group
Phone: 0151 647 8369
Email: bevmorgan@homestartwirral.co.uk
Jane Morgan
Wirral Council - Constituency Manager, Wirral West
Phone: 0151 691 8318
Email: janemorgan@wirral.gov.uk

Page 24

2

Wirral Short Quality
Screening (SQS) Report 2013
Page 25

Agenda Item 10

Steve Pimblett
Senior Manager
Targeted Prevention
Services

Report of Short Quality Screening
(SQS) of youth offending work in Wirral
l

Page 26

l

l

This presentation outlines the findings of the recent SQS inspection,
conducted during 30th September -2nd October 2013
As an independent inspectorate, HMI Probation provides assurance to
Ministers and the public on the effectiveness of work with those who
have offended or are likely to offend, promotes continuous
improvement by the organisations that they inspect and contributes to
the effectiveness of the criminal justice system.
Good quality assessment and planning at the start of a sentence is
critical to increasing the likelihood of positive outcomes. The purpose
of the SQS inspection is to assess the quality and effectiveness of
casework with children and young people who have offended, at the
start of a sample of 34 recent cases supervised by Wirral Youth
Offending Service. Wherever possible this is undertaken in conjunction
with the allocated case manager, thereby increasing the effectiveness
as a learning opportunity for staff.

Summary

Page 27

Overall, we found a very positive picture in Wirral YOS.
The previous inspection had taken place just over four years
ago and at that point in time substantial improvement was
required in all areas of work.
It was pleasing to see that significant progress had been made.
Staff were well supported and committed. They produced good
quality reports, assessments and plans and had access to a
range of services. There was still scope for further improving
the quality of work by ensuring risk and vulnerability plans were
more specific and linked to decisions made in other meetings.

Inspection Themes
l
Page 28

l
l
l
l

Reducing the likelihood of re-offending
Protecting the public
Protecting the child or young person
Ensuring that the sentence is served
Operational management

Key strengths

Page 29

The best aspects of work that we found in Wirral included:
l the quality of PSR's prepared for the courts
l the engagement of children and young people and
parents/carers in assessments
l the use of a wide range of sources to inform and verify
assessments
l the attention paid to encouraging and achieving compliance.
Different tactics were employed, and mostly these were
successful. Enforcement was used only as a last resort
l the assessment and consideration of diversity factors
l there were several examples of positive initial outcomes for
children or young people.

Areas requiring improvement

Page 30

The most significant areas for improvement were:
l planning for work to manage risk of harm to others
and reduce vulnerability
l management oversight of the quality of assessments
and plans.

Post Inspection Action

Page 31

Wirral YOS will now focus our post-inspection work
on the identified areas requiring improvement.
A comprehensive action plan will be completed
which will be monitored and reviewed regularly by
the Management Team to ensure continuous
improvement is made within set timeframes.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32

To: Julia Hassall, Chair of Wirral YOS Management Board
Copy to: See copy list at end
From: Julie Fox, Assistant Chief Inspector
Publication date: 30th October 2013
Report of Short Quality Screening (SQS) of youth offending work in Wirral
This report outlines the findings of the recent SQS inspection, conducted during 30th September 2nd October 2013. We carried this out as part of our programme of inspection of youth offending
work. This report will be published on the HMI Probation website. A copy will be provided to
partner inspectorates to inform their inspections, and to the Youth Justice Board (YJB).
Context
As an independent inspectorate, HMI Probation provides assurance to Ministers and the public on
the effectiveness of work with those who have offended or are likely to offend, promotes
continuous improvement by the organisations that we inspect and contributes to the effectiveness
of the criminal justice system.
Good quality assessment and planning at the start of a sentence is critical to increasing the
likelihood of positive outcomes. The purpose of the SQS inspection is to assess the quality and
effectiveness of casework with children and young people who have offended, at the start of a
sample of 34 recent cases supervised by Wirral Youth Offending Service. Wherever possible this is
undertaken in conjunction with the allocated case manager, thereby increasing the effectiveness
as a learning opportunity for staff.
We gather evidence against the SQS criteria, which are available on the HMI Probation website http://www.justice.gov.uk/about/hmi-probation.
Summary
Overall, we found a very positive picture in Wirral YOS. The previous inspection had taken place
just over four years ago and at that point in time substantial improvement was required in all
areas of work. It was pleasing to see that significant progress had been made. Staff were well
supported and committed. They produced good quality reports, assessments and plans and had
access to a range of services. There was still scope for further improving the quality of work by
ensuring risk and vulnerability plans were more specific and linked to decisions made in other
meetings.
Commentary on the inspection in Wirral:
1.

Reducing the likelihood of reoffending

1.1.

In all but two cases we found that good quality pre-sentence reports (PSRs) were
provided to the court. In one case the report was commended by the court. One inspector
1 of 5 33
Page

noted: “This case contained a very thorough PSR, which provided a good biographical
account of the young person, leading to a detailed assessment of the risk of harm posed,
as well as the vulnerability issues”. In another case we noted: “The PSR was of a good
quality and identified and analysed the triggers for offending, the likelihood of reoffending
and the risk of harm he posed. The proposal was appropriate and well argued. The case
manager was in court to argue the case as was a support worker who delivered
Multisystemic Therapy”. Management oversight of the quality of reports was effective.
1.2.

Almost all initial assessments of what was likely to make a child or young person offend
were on time and of a good enough quality. We noted: “The panel report and initial
assessment was based on relevant and verified information from sources such as social
care, education, health and police. In particular, the case manager had obtained a copy of
a psychology assessment which assessed the learning difficulties and IQ of the young
person - which was on file”.

1.3.

Experiences of children and young people are dynamic and can change quite quickly. As a
result, assessments need to be reviewed, and should include a descriptive and analytical
component. The great majority of the reviewed assessments we looked at were
completed well enough. However, there were several reviews that were a copy of a
previous assessment, with insufficient update or historical information which did not
reflect the current circumstances of the child or young person.

1.4.

Following on from assessment, we expect to see a plan of work to help reduce the
likelihood of reoffending. Almost all plans were of a sufficient standard and more than
three-quarters were reviewed well enough. In one case we noted: “The intervention plan
was detailed and contained objectives that were consistent with the issues that were
identified in the assessment. Informed also by information obtained from the ‘What do
YOU think’ self assessment completed by the child or young person, the objectives were
framed in a manner which was child or young person friendly”.

1.5.

Where the child or young person was serving a custodial sentence, we found sufficient
planning during the custodial phase of the sentence to reduce the likelihood of
reoffending in all six cases.

2.

Protecting the public

2.1.

There was a clear and thorough assessment of risk of harm to others in 15 out of 19
cases where there had been a PSR.

2.2.

A good quality assessment of risk of harm to others was seen in 25 out of 31 cases. There
were three cases where previous violent offences had not been taken into account.
Assessments of risk of harm were adequately reviewed in the great majority of cases.
Two reviews were copies of earlier assessments that had not been updated to reflect
what had recently happened in the child or young person’s life.

2.3.

Where a child or young person may pose a risk of harm to others, we expect to see a
plan to minimise the likelihood of this happening. In 20 out of 25 cases, planning was
done well enough to manage risk of harm. This applied to all of the custodial cases.
Where plans were insufficient, this was mainly because potential changes in risk of harm
were not anticipated and the planned response to any increase in risk of harm was
reactive (review risk of harm and/or discuss the case in a meeting). It was also unclear
why, how and when information about the child or young person would be shared
between other agencies (for example the Anti-Social Behaviour Team or the police) and
the case manager to manage risk of harm effectively.

2 of 34
5
Page

2.4.

In most cases, plans to address the risk of harm to others had been reviewed sufficiently
well.

2.5.

Where there was an identifiable victim or potential victim, the risk of harm they faced had
been effectively managed in the great majority of cases. Where it had not been effectively
managed it was mainly due to insufficient planning.

2.6.

Management oversight of risk of harm work was effective in half of the relevant cases.
There were important deficiencies in assessment and planning that had not been
addressed.

3.

Protecting the child or young person

3.1.

In almost three-quarters of cases, vulnerability and safeguarding needs were sufficiently
assessed and these components were fully addressed in all but four PSRs. In a number of
cases we felt that vulnerability had been underestimated. This was mainly because
relevant factors had not been taken into account or a narrow view of vulnerability was
applied. One inspector noted: “A medium vulnerability classification would have been
more appropriate than low at the start of the order given that the young person has
autism, ADHD, SEN and had only just moved to live with his Dad and was missing his
Mum”. In six cases we concluded that the vulnerability classification was inaccurate.

3.2.

The great majority of reviews of safeguarding and vulnerability throughout the sentence
were an acceptable standard. In two cases we felt that a review should have been
completed after a significant change and two reviews had not been sufficiently updated.

3.3.

In 20 out of 27 cases planning for work to manage and reduce vulnerability was
adequate. We considered a vulnerability management plan should have been produced in
five cases in the community and in two cases when the child or young person was in
custody. In two cases it was unclear how the plan linked to other plans and actions from
relevant meetings.

3.4.

In almost three-quarters of the cases we examined, there were sufficient reviews
throughout the sentence to address safeguarding and vulnerability needs.

3.5.

In 11 out of 24 cases management oversight was effective in ensuring the quality of work
to address safeguarding and vulnerability. There was evidence of management oversight
taking place in meetings and in one case it was noted: “The case manager felt
appropriately supported by their line manager to challenge decisions by social care via the
risk and vulnerability meetings at the YOS”. More attention was required to ensure that
deficiencies in assessment and, in particular planning were addressed.

4.

Ensuring that the sentence is served

4.1.

The great majority of assessments of diversity factors and barriers to engagement were
sufficient. It was noted in one case: “The young person had previously been assessed by
educational psychology and found to have a very low IQ. The case manager made sure
that all work undertaken was discussion-based and recognised their preferred learning
style. There was good shared and joint working with the foster carer, social care and
reparation staff alongside contributions to LAC reviews. Actions from these meetings were
reflected within the intervention plan, VMP and the daily work undertaken with the young
person. The young person had also been linked in with a specialist careers support worker
who was employed by an organisation who specifically worked with individuals with
learning difficulties. This work was due to continue well beyond the end of their court
order, in conjunction with the support that would be provided by the Leaving Care
(Pathways) team until the young person was 21”.
3 of 5 35
Page

4.2.

Sufficient attention had been given to diversity factors and barriers to engagement in all
PSRs. We noted: “Very good assessment of barriers to engagement in the PSR, which
detailed the impact of asperger’s syndrome and autism of the young person but also
linked these to the likelihood of reoffending and risk of serious harm. Well argued
proposal in the report which identified a robust plan for intervention”.

4.3.

In almost all cases there was sufficient engagement with the child or young person and
parents/carers to carry out assessments and plans. One inspector noted: “There was
evidence that the parents and young person were involved with the assessment. The
parents and young person had completed a self assessment form and both documents
were quoted in every section of the Asset where relevant”. The child or young person or
parent/carer were involved in the preparation of every PSR.

4.4.

Whilst we found attention was being paid in most plans to diversity factors and potential
barriers to engagement, it was not always considered or explored in relation to Looked
After Children and girls and young women.

4.5.

In almost all cases we reviewed, where relevant, sufficient attention had been given to
the health and well-being of the child or young person.

4.6.

Twenty-six children or young people had complied with the requirements of their
sentence. In all cases where the child or young person had not complied, the response of
the YOS was sufficient.

Operational management
Three-quarters of the staff we interviewed described countersigning and management oversight of
risk of harm and safeguarding work as an effective process. However, we judged that staff
supervision and quality assurance arrangements had made a positive impact in less than half of
the cases inspected. The inspection team found that there was more evidence of accountability
and effective management oversight through the quality assurance process than in supervision.
The great majority of staff said that they received appropriate and effective supervision and their
line manager had the skills and knowledge to help them improve the quality of their work. Fewer
staff thought managers were able to assess the quality of their work, but all staff felt supported by
them. Staff reported that they received training and skills development to enable them to do their
current job and deliver interventions, but fewer felt that their future development needs were met.
Several staff said that they would like more training to improve their ability to recognise speech,
language and communication needs of children and young people. We found that all staff were
aware of local polices and procedures that related to compliance. The majority had knowledge of
procedures about vulnerability and risk of harm and how the principles of effective practice applied
in their work with children and young people.
Key strengths
The best aspects of work that we found in Wirral included:
•

the quality of PSRs prepared for the courts

•

the engagement of children and young people and parents/carers in assessments

•

the use of a wide range of sources to inform and verify assessments

•

the attention paid to encouraging and achieving compliance. Different tactics were employed,
and mostly these were successful. Enforcement was used only as a last resort

•

the assessment and consideration of diversity factors

•

there were several examples of positive initial outcomes for children or young people.
4 of 36
5
Page

Areas requiring improvement
The most significant areas for improvement were:
i.

planning for work to manage risk of harm to others and reduce vulnerability

ii. management oversight of the quality of assessments and plans.
We strongly recommend that you focus your post-inspection improvement work on these particular
aspects of practice.
We are grateful for the support that we received from staff in the YOS to facilitate and engage
with this inspection. Please pass on our thanks, and ensure that they are made fully aware of
these inspection findings.
If you have any further questions about the inspection please contact the lead inspector, who was
Nigel Scarff. He can be contacted on 07766 422290 or by email at
nigel.scarff@hmiprobation.gsi.gov.uk.
Copy to:
YOS Manager

Steve Pimblett

Local Authority Chief Executive

Graham Burgess

Director of Children’s Services

Julia Hassall

Lead Elected Member for Children’s Services

Tony Smith

Lead Elected Member for Crime

George Davies

Police and Crime Commissioner for Merseyside

Jane Kennedy

Chair of Local Safeguarding Board

Julia Hassall

Chair of Youth Court Bench

Ruth Shaw

YJB Business Area Manager

Liza Dirkin

YJB link staff

Malcolm Potter, Paula Williams, Alaina Tolhurst

Ofsted – Further Education and Learning

Sheila Willis

Ofsted – Social Care

Debbie Jones, Matthew Brazier, Carolyn Adcock

Care Quality Commission

Fergus Currie, Daniel Carrick

HM Inspectorate of Constabulary

Paul Eveleigh, Rob Bowles

Note: to request a print out of this report, please contact HMI Probation Publications
publications@hmiprobation.gsi.gov.uk, 0161 869 1300

5 of 5 37
Page

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38

Agenda Item 12
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – 19th NOVEMBER 2013
CHILDREN’S TRUST EXECUTIVE AND RELATED SUB-GROUPS DEVELOPMENTS

1.0 Background
The aim of Wirral Children’s Trust (WCT) is to work across professional and agency
boundaries to make a difference to the experience and life chances of children, young
people and their families. The trust will agree priorities and actions for children’s services
ensuring safeguarding underpins all activity and provide a framework for the effective
operation of local arrangements. In order to achieve this partner agencies meet through an
agreed structure of working groups. This report outlines the current status of the structure
of the WCT groups and plans for further development.

2.0 Introduction
The structure of WCT sub-groups was amended during the development of the new
Children and Young People’s Plan 2013-16 to reflect significant changes in partnership
organisations. The published structure of WCT is shown in Figure 1. The new plan reflects
that as change in the public sector continues WCT will need to continue to evolve including
constant review of the structure of sub-groups to ensure that they remain fit for purpose
and that key priorities are delivered.
The Children’s Trust Executive (CTE) operates as an executive of the WCT Board and is
Chaired by the Director of Children’s Services. The CTE has made a commitment to
review and reform the operation of the current sub-groups to optimise the use of reduced
resources across the partnership.
The two key areas to be reviewed are Staying Safe and Achievement and Economic
Wellbeing and the associated sub-groups. The review will consider the refreshed
partnership approach to preventative and targeted services, new Government legislation
and Ofsted inspection changes. At this stage there are no plans to amend the structure
and operation of the Being Healthy strategy group and the Strategy Lead and Chair of the
Group will remain in place.
The Participation Champion is currently developing a framework to ensure children and
young people’s voices are integral to the operation of all services. Existing successful
engagement forums will be utilised and in addition the new ‘Youth Voice Group’ has been
set up with clear aims:
• Act as an overarching mechanism for young people’s engagement/participation.
• To bring together interested young people from other participation groups (such as
Children in Care Council or District Youth forums).
This area will be further developed and new Children’s Trust engagement work piloted with
the existing Being Healthy Group.
The review will be carried out by the CTE and a recommendation regarding the restructure
and associated operational changes is proposed to be brought to the CTB in March 2014
with new operation expected to be in place from April 2014.

Page 39

Although a review is ongoing and changes in the operation of sub-groups are planned the
delivery of the Children and Young People’s Plan will continue to be monitored by the CTE
and overseen by the Director of Children’s Services with quarterly performance reports
delivered to the CTB.

Figure 1: The published structure of Wirral Children’s Trust which is currently under
review.

6.0 Recommendations:
a) That Wirral Children’s Trust Board note the developments underway.
b) That recommendations regarding a new operational structure for WCT are brought
before the board in March 2014

Report Author:
Nancy Clarkson
Senior Manager CYPD Infrastructure

Contact:
Phone: 0151 6664329
Email: nancyclarkson@wirral.gov.uk

Page 40

Agenda Item 13
WIRRAL CHILDREN’S TRUST BOARD – 19th November 2013
Children and Young People’s Plan - Q2 Performance

1.0 Background and Introduction
1.1 This report forms part of a regular performance updated to the Wirral Children’s Trust
Board with regard to the Children and Young People’s Plan 2013-16.

2.0 Q2 Summary
2.1 For Q2 2013/14 21 indicators are being reported, 5 are new measures that are to be
baselined in 2013. These relate to national changes to DfE reporting of KS2 results and
changes to monitoring across the Early Years Foundation stage Profile.
Of the 16 measures 13 or 81.3% are rated as green and or improved, one is amber and
two measures are red against target.

Red: Prevalence of Breastfeeding at 6 – 8 week check
Red: Rate of CP Plans per 10,000 population (0-17)
Amber: Under 18 Conception Rates per 1,000 females (15-17)

3.0 Recommendations:
3.1 The Wirral Children’s Trust Board notes the report.

Report Authors:
Tracy Little
Performance Manager

Contact:
Phone 0151 6664412
Email: tracylittle@wirral.gov.uk

Page 41

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 42

25.0
35.5
47.3

24.5
33.8
34.6

24.7
35.6
-

Historically
2010/11 2011/12 2012/13
5.0
4.5
4.9
31.2
29.9
30.2
32.1

59.8
72.2

Stability of Foster Placements - Length of Placement

Timeliness of Adoptions
PHOF 1.11 - Domestic Violence (Placeholder)

69.9

70.0

10.5

64.7

71.5

9.4

Historically
2010/11 2011/12 2012/13
93.8
94.2
95.7
12
16
54.5
65.7

\\bh10201\bh10201data\Shared\Performance\ChildrenandYoungPeople'sDepartment\2013_14_ChildrenandYoungPeople'sPerformanceDashboard_Test.xlsx

Percentage of Children particpating in Reviews
Number of Schools in Youth Parliament
Percentage of pupils who have shared their ideas about their school- Primary (HELP survey 2013)
Percentage of pupils who have shared their ideas about their school- Secondary (HELP survey 2013)

Measure

Outcome 5: We will listen to your views to inform decisions that affect you.

Historically
Measure
2010/11 2011/12 2012/13
Attainment Gap across Early Learning Goals - 2013 onwards
Percentage of FSM Pupils reaching expected level in Phonics Decoding, KS1
41.0
FSM Attainment Gap - Percentage of Children Achieving Level 4+ KS2 ( Reading, Writing and Maths)
0.0
0.0
0.0
FSM Attainment Gap - Percentage of Children Achieving 5 or more GCSE's (Including English and maths)
36.1
34.2
30.0
Percentage of Children with a SEN Statement Achieving 5 or more GCSE's (Including English and maths)
6.0
9.0
10.5
Looked After Children - Percentage of Children Achieving Level 4 and above at Key Stage 2 (Reading, Writing 0.0
0.0
0.0
Looked After Children - Percentage of Children Achieving 5 or more GCSE's (Including English and maths)
7.8
10.9
12.0
Attainment Gap - Level 2 at Aged 19
25.0
20.0
21.0
Attainment Gap - Level 3 at Aged 19
36.0
36.0
34.0
Percentage of Care Leavers who are in Education, Employment or Training (EET)
39.0
48.0
58.1

Outcome 4: We will support those of you who need extra support to reach your potential and do well.

Outcome 3: We will raise your aspirations and achievement, so that you are equipped to enter adulthood and working life.
Historically
Measure
2010/11 2011/12 2012/13
Percentage of Children achieving a Good Level of Development -EYFS
Percentage of Pupils reaching expected level in Phonics Decoding - KS1
54.0
Percentage of Children Achieving Level 4 + (Reading, Writing and Maths) - KS2
74.0
Percentage of Children Achieving 5 or more GCSE's (Including English and maths)
58.7
64.1
65.4
Uncapped Average Point Score Key Stage 4
445.2
468.7
476.1
Percentage of Schools in Education Quality
94.0
Percentage of Total Absence in Primary Schools
5.3
5.1
4.5
Percentage of Offers of Education or Training to 16 and 17 year olds (September Guarantee)
93.0
91.6
94.3
Percentage of Young People aged 16 - 18 who are Not in Education, Employment or Training (NEET)
8.9
7.5

9.0

Stability of Foster Placements - Three or more moves

Outcome 2: We will keep you safe from harm, in a family environment and where necessary support you at the earliest opportunity.
Historically
Measure
2010/11 2011/12 2012/13
Looked After Children Rate per 10,000 aged 0 - 17
102.0
100.0
99.2
Children in Need Rate per 10,000 aged 0 - 17
445.1
429.7
417.7
Rate of Child Protection Plans per 10,000
43.4
55.0
39.8
Child protection Plans Lasting 2 years or more
1.8
3.5
4.2
Child Protection Plans - Reregistrations
17.6
18.6
17.1

*Conception data related to year 2012/13 due to reporting delay

PHOF 4.1 Infant Mortality
PHOF 2.2 Prevalance of Breastfeeding at 6-8 weeks
PHOF 4.2 Tooth Decay in Children under 5
PHOF 1.2 School Readiness (Placeholder)
PHOF 2.6 Excess Weight in Reception Year
PHOF 2.6 Excess Weight in Year 6
PHOF 2.4 Under 18 Conception Rate per 1,000 females (15 - 17)*

Measure

Outcome 1: We will support you to have the best possible start to life and to develop healthy lifestyle choices.

Children and Young People's Plan Performance 2013/14

BusinessIntelligenceTeam

Page 43

22.6
33.9
30.7

23.4
33.9
38.1
32.9

35.4

Target

Latest Benchmark
NW
Eng
SN
-

Latest Benchmark
NW
Eng
SN
38.7
36.6
38.0
55.0
56.0
55.1
30.0
26.4
26.4
7.7
8.4
6.8
15.9
14.6
15.2
19.0
17.0
20.5
28.0
24.0
27.1
58.0
58.0
62.8

Latest Benchmark
NW
Eng
SN
50.0
52.0
48.3
69.0
69.0
68.7
77.0
76.0
76.6
59.6
58.6
59.7
457.1
455.3
472.9
4.2
4.4
4.2
93.8
92.4
93.1
7.1
6.1
8.5

Q2
Actual
RAG

Target

## 5% - 10%

Q3
Actual
RAG

Target

RAG

0

RAG

RAG

Target

76.0

70.0

9.0

Target
96.6
410.4
45.1
5.0
15.0

Q2
Actual

5.7

RAG

Target

7.0

New data baseline year

Target

7.0

0.0

Q3
Actual

#DIV/0!

#DIV/0!

#DIV/0!

Q3
Actual
0.0
0.0
0.0
#DIV/0!

Q3
Actual

0.0

Data available December 2013

65.9
462.5

32.9

0

RAG

RAG

RAG

Target

Q1
Actual

RAG

Q2
Actual

RAG

Target
Data Available March 2013
Data Available March 2014
Benchmark 2012 data.
Benchmark 2012 data.

Target

Q3
Actual

Data available March 2014
Data available March 2014
Benchmark 2012 data. National data due March 2014

RAG

7.0

Target

76.0

70.0

9.0

Target
95.2
396.8
45.1
5.0
15.0

24.7
35.6
32.9

0

Target

Q4
Actual
0.0
0.0

42.9 (P)
11.8 (P)

Q4
Actual
39.50
58.00
20.9 (P)
34.8 (P)

94.4 (P)
0.0

Q4
Actual
47.0
68.0
76.0
65.9
462.5
94.0

#DIV/0!

#DIV/0!

#DIV/0!

Q4
Actual
0.0
0.0
0.0
#DIV/0!

22.2
33.5
0.0

0
32.1

Q4
Actual

## Over 10%

National data due March 2014
Benchmark 2012 data. National data due March 2014
Benchmark 2012 data. Data available December 2013
National data due March 2014

Q1
Actual

7.3

Q2
Actual

94.4

69.8

6.6

Q2
Actual
100.6
413.5
49.0
2.0
9.0

0.0

Benchmark 2013 data
Benchmark 2013 data
New from 2013

Target

76.0

100.0

Target
97.9
417.9
45.1
5.0
15.0

32.9

70.0

RAG

32.3 ##

Benchmark 2012 data
Benchmark 2012 data

71.5

RAG

0

35.4
Four Yearly study next due 2016

9.0

7.0

Target

Target

7.9

Q1
Actual
98.8
418.6
46.8
0.0
9.0

35.7

33.6 -0

Q1
Actual

Target

RAG

Within 5%

Benchmarking 2011 data. Three year averages latest available 2009 - 12

Q1
Actual

Target

Latest Benchmark
Target
NW
Eng
SN
79.0
60.0
81.5
99.2
343.1
332.2
370.1
419.7
41.4
37.9
42.1
45.1
4.5
5.2
4.2
5.0
14.9
14.9
16.5
15.0
9.3
11.0
10.8
(2011) (2012) (2012)
9.0
68.2
68.0
69.1
(2012) (2012) (2012)
70.0
65.3
73.4
69.6
(2011) (2011) (2011)
76.0

23.2
34.7
35.3

Latest Benchmark
NW
Eng
SN
4.7
4.3
4.5
46.9
31.5

Target RAG

RAG

RAG

RAG

RAG

RAG

15/11/13

Contact:TracyLittle01516664412

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 44

